

STATE OF VERMONT
CHITTENDEN SUPERIOR COURT

CHITTENDEN COUNTY, SS.:
DOCKET NO.                               

NORTHGATE HOUSING LIMITED 
)

PARTNERSHIP, 



)

Plaintiff,



)

)

v.




)

)

CHRISTA WHITE and 


)

PETER WHITE,



)

Defendants,



)

)

v.




)

)

NORTHGATE RESIDENTS 

)

ASSOCIATION, INC.,


)

Third-party Defendant.

)


AMENDED ANSWER TO COUNT I OF COMPLAINT, COUNTERCLAIM,


AND THIRD-PARTY COMPLAINT
Defendants Christa White and Peter White, by their undersigned counsel, as their amended answer to Count I of the complaint herein (filed as of right pursuant to V.R.C.P. Rule 15(a)) and as their third-party complaint, allege as follows:


ANSWER
1. Admit the allegations of ¶¶ 1- 4 of the complaint. 

2. Deny ¶ 5.

3. Defendan tPeter White denies the allegation of ¶ 5.1 of the complaint, and affirmatively alleges that he delivered a signed copy of the Lease Amendment in question to plaintiff’s counsel.

4. Defendant Christa White admits so much of the allegation of ¶ 5.1 of the complaint as alleges that she has refused to sign a purported Lease Amendment, and affirmatively alleges that the purported Amendment was not validly adopted and that she had no obligation to sign it. 

5. In response to ¶ 6, Defendants have heretofore filed a Motion to Dismiss pursuant to V.R.C.P. Rule 12(b)(6), and reserve their answer pending the Court’s disposition of said motion. 


COUNTERCLAIM AND THIRD-PARTY COMPLAINT

THIRD PARTY

6. Third-Party Defendant Northgate Residents Association, Inc., also known as “Northgate/Greenfield Residents Association” and “NGRA,” and hereafter referred to as “NGRA,”, is a Vermont corporation with its principal place of business at Burlington, Vermont. 

FACTS
7. NGRA’s bylaws provide that all adult residents of Northgate Apartments are members of NGRA. 

8. Pursuant to the Lease between the Plaintiff and the Defendants and other documents governing the structure and operation of the Northgate housing project, the NGRA membership must approve all lease amendments before such amendments can become effective. 

9. Upon information and belief the purported Lease Amendment which Plaintiff alleges that the Defendants have not signed, and which Defendant Christa White admits she has not signed, was never approved by NGRA’s membership in accordance with NGRA rules and bylaws. 

10. On January 17, 2003, February 14, 2003, and April 8, 2003, Defendants were requested in writing to sign the contested Lease Amendment. In the second and third letters, they were notified that “it is a violation of your lease” not to sign and return the amendment. 

11. Defendant Christa White notified the management office that she refused to sign the Lease Amendment because of her belief that it had not properly been approved by NGRA. 

12. Plaintiff and NGRA are subject to federal HUD regulations governing multifamily housing projects that receive federal financial subsidies, 24 CFR Part 245, § 245.10. 

13. Tenants at Northgate have a federally-guaranteed right to establish and operate a tenant organization for the purpose of addressing issues including the terms of their tenancy and activities related to housing and community development. 24 CFR § 245.100.

14. Among other requirements, owners of HUD-regulated projects, including Plaintiff, are required by federal law to: “(a) Recognize legitimate tenant organizations; and (b) Give reasonable consideration to concerns raised by legitimate tenant organizations.” 24 CFR 245.110.

15. A tenant organization is “legitimate,” if,  inter alia, it “operates democratically” and is “completely independent of owners, management, and their representatives.” 24 CFR § 245.110. 

16. Defendant Christa White has, since prior to March, 2002, been a tenant organizer at Northgate as defined in the federal regulations. 24 CFR 245.125. 

17. Defendant Christa White has, at various times and places in 2002 and 2003, been deprived by Plaintiff  and/or Third-Party Defendant, of rights guaranteed to tenant organizers by federal law, 24 CFR §§ 245.115, 245.120; by state law, 9 V.S.A. § 4465(3); and by the First Amendment to the Constitution of the United States, including but not limited to the rights to initiate contact with tenants, to post information on community bulletin boards, and to convene  tenant meetings in on-site community spaces. 

18. Third-Party Defendant NGRA has adopted and publicized a Board of Directors Membership Policy that provides that to qualify for NGRA Board membership, a member of NGRA must be “in good standing with the Management office,” and that “A resident in good standing is defined as a resident who is presently in compliance with all the terms of the Northgate lease.” 

19. Representatives of Plaintiff and its managing agent Maloney Properties, Inc., routinely take active roles in the Board meetings and the membership meetings of Third-Party Defendant. 

20. Counsel for Plaintiff has, until some time in July, 2003, also acted as counsel for NGRA, and has specifically advised NGRA regarding implementation of its Board membership policy. 

21. Third-Party Defendant NGRA has adopted and publicized a bylaw that provides, “A director may be removed from office by a vote of two-thirds of the Board of Directors present and voting at a regular or special meeting of the Board. Removal of a director may take place without the necessity of showing cause.” 

22. On June 18, 2003, Defendant Christa White was elected by the membership of NGRA to the NGRA Board of Directors. 

23. On July 3, Plaintiff mailed Defendants a Notice to Quit for allegedly violating the lease by not signing the Lease Amendment.  

24. On July 29, 2003, a special meeting of the NGRA Board removed Defendant Christa White from the NGRA Board. The pending eviction proceedings were the stated basis for her removal. 

LEGAL CLAIMS
25. Third-Party Defendant NGRA is not “completely independent of owners, management, and their representatives,” as required by federal regulation, 24 CFR 245.110,  because its Board membership policy purports to exclude membership by residents who have disputes with management, because ownership and Maloney Properties personnel routinely take active roles in its meetings, and because until July, 2003, it obtained its legal counsel from an attorney employed by the Plaintiff and/or its managing agent.

26. Third-Party Defendant NGRA is not “democratically operated,”  as required by federal regulation, 24 CFR 245.110, because Board members duly elected by the NGRA membership may be removed by other Board members without cause. 

27. NGRA’s purported adoption and promulgation of the contested Lease Amendment was ultra vires.

28. Plaintiff  and Third-Party Defendant have violated Defendant’s rights as a tenant organizer under 24 CFR §§ 245.115, 245.120; 9 V.S.A. § 4465(3); and the First Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

29. The Plaintiff’s eviction of Defendants was retaliatory, in violation of 9 V.S.A. § 4465.

30. The Third-Party Defendant’s removal of Defendant Christa White from its Board of Directors was in violation of 24 CFR 245.110.

WHEREFORE, Defendant respectfully requests a Judgment of this Court:

1.
Declaring the rights of the several parties hereto, pursuant to 12 V.S.A. § 4711 and applicable federal and state laws: inter alia, specifically declaring that the contested Lease Amendment was not validly adopted; and that the Third-Party Defendant is not a “legitimate” tenants organization, and that its bylaws and policies set forth at ¶¶ 18 and 20, above, are contrary to law and therefore invalid and unenforceable; and 

2.
Dismissing Plaintiff’s complaint against Defendants; and 

3.
Enjoining Plaintiff and Third-Party Defendant from interfering with Defendants’ tenant-organizing activities, as such are protected by federal and state law; and

4.
Enjoining Third-Party Defendant to reinstate Defendant Christa White as a member of its Board of Directors, and 

5.
Awarding Defendants the costs of this action and their reasonable attorney’s fees as against Plaintiff pursuant to 9 V.S.A. § 4465(b); and 

6.
Granting such other and further relief as to the Court may appear just and proper. 

Dated:_________________




______________________

Vermont Legal Aid, Inc.

Stephen Norman, of Counsel

P.O. Box 1367

Burlington VT 05402-1367

(802) 863-5620

Joshua L. Simonds, Esq. 

Mertz, Talbott & Simonds, PLC

126 College Street, Suite 3B

Burlington VT 05402-1398

Attorneys for Defendants




